
REGULAR PIQUA CITY COMMISSION MEETING 
  TUESDAY, JULY 7, 2015 

7:30 P.M. – COMMISSION CHAMBER – 2nd FLOOR 
201 WEST WATER STREET 

PIQUA, OHIO   45356 
 

 CALL TO ORDER 
 
 PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
 ROLL  
 
 PRESENTATION BY NATHAN BURKHOLDER - PIQUA ACTIVITY DAY 
  
             REGULAR CITY COMMISSION MEETING 
 
    CONSENT AGENDA 
 

1. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
Approval of the minutes from the Regular Piqua City Commission Meeting of June 16, 2015 
 

 OLD  BUSINESS 
 

2. ORD NO. 7-15 (2nd Reading-Amended)   
An Emergency Ordinance repealing Sections 94.23, 94.24 and 94.26 of Chapter 94 and adopting 
new sections 94.23, 94.24, and 94.26 of the Piqua Municipal Code 

 
 NEW BUSINESS 
 

3. RES. NO. R-102-15 (Public Hearing) 
A Resolution accepting for statutory purposes a budget for the calendar year 2016 

 
4. RES. NO. R-103-15 

A Resolution awarding a contract to L.J. DeWeese Co. Inc., for the construction of the Safe Routes 
to School Improvement project 

 
5. RES. NO. R-104-15 

A Resolution awarding a contract to Underground Utilities, Inc. for the Garbry Road Water Main 
Extension project 

 
6. RES. NO. R-105-15 

A Resolution awarding a contract to Grissom Construction, LLC for the Garnsey Street Sidewalk 
Replacement project 

 
7. RES. NO. R-106-15 

A Resolution to authorize a contract for the demolition of 102 S. Main Street 
 

 PUBLIC COMMENT  
(This is an opportunity for citizens to address the City Commission regarding issues or to provide  
information.  Comments are requested to be limited to five (5) minutes and specific questions  
should be addressed to the City Manager’s office.) 
 
CITY MANAGER’S REPORT 
 

 COMMISSIONERS COMMENT 
 
 ADJOURNMENT   



 1

MINUTES 
PIQUA CITY COMMISSION 

Tuesday, June 16, 2015 7:30 P.M. 
 
Piqua City Commission met at 7:30 P.M. in the Municipal Government Complex Commission 
Chambers located at 201 W. Water Street. Mayor Fess called the meeting to order.  Also present 
were Commissioners Terry, Wilson, and Martin.  Absent: Vogt. 
 
Moved by Commissioner Martin, seconded by Commissioner Terry to excuse Commission Vogt 
from the June 16, 2015 Regular City Commission Meeting. Voice vote, Aye: Martin, Fess, Wilson, 
and Terry. Nay: None. 

 
REGULAR CITY COMMISSION MEETING 

       
     PROCLAMATION –PIQUA FOURTH OF JULY ASSOCIATION 
     ACCEPTING: DIANE MILLER, AL FLEDDERMAN, ED MAN & JEFF MARCONETTE 
 
     Mayor Fess read the proclamation and presented to Diane Miller, Al Fledderman, Ed Mann, and  
     Bobbie Boyd thanking them for their long time commitment to the 4th of July celebration in the City  
     of Piqua. 
 
      Diane Miller, president of the Fourth of July Association, thanked the City of Piqua, the employees,  
      and the citizens of Piqua who have helped and supported them to make the Fourth 
      of July celebration a success over the last 50 years. 
     
     PRESENTATION BY PIQUA NATIONAL GUARD – SARGENT JOHN HAMPTON 
 
     Sargent First Class Robert Shadic, Sargent John Hampton, and Staff Sargent Brian Crawford, 
     members of the Piqua National Guard Armory came forward and provided a brief history of the  
     Piqua Unit and presenting the City of Piqua with a framed picture of an American Flag with the  
     many faces of citizen soldiers in the flag.  Mayor Fess and City Manager Huff accepted the picture  
     thanking them for their service to the country, further stating it will be displayed very proudly in the  
     Municipal Government Complex. 
 
     PIQUA BIKE CHALLENGE UPDATE 
     
    City Planner Chris Schmiesing and Jim Hemmert provided a brief update on the Bike to Work  
    Week Awards and read off the names of the participants and the number of miles they logged.  The 
    Silver Pedal Awards were presented to the winners of the Large Business, Small Business  
    Individual and Student category.  Miami Valley Steel was the winner in the Large Business 
    category logging 2078 miles, Piqua Family Practice was the winner in the Small Business category  
    logging in 592 miles, Mike Treon of Treon’s Barber Styling was the winner in the Individual Category 
    logging in 839 miles, and Bennett School was the winner in the Student category logging in 750  
    miles.    
 
    Also local citizens rode a quite a large number of miles, with the total of 73 participants they totaled  
    over 8884 miles, making Piqua #8 Nationally in the National Bike Challenge. 
    
    Elizabeth and Mike Gutmann co-chairs of the Bicycling Summit came forward and provided a brief  
    overview of the Summit held in Piqua at the Fort Piqua Plaza on May 21, 2015.  The Gutmann’s  
    praised City Planner Chris Schmiesing for his leadership skills and vision, further thanking the City  
    of Piqua for their support. 
 
     Mayor Fess stated the Bicycling Summit was amazing, thanking Elizabeth and Mike Gutmann for  
     their leadership, Chris Schmiesing and all of the volunteers who help make it a great success. 
 
 
 



 2

Consent Agenda 
 
Approval of Minutes  
     
Approval of the minutes from the June 2, 2015 Regular Piqua City Commission Meeting. 
 
RES. NO. R-94-15 
 A Resolution of Appreciation for the Public Service of James D. Drieling as a City Employee 
 
Mayor Fess read the Resolution and presented it to Mr. Drieling thanking him for his 25  
 years of service to the citizens of Piqua.  Mr. Drieling thanked the City of Piqua.   
          
 Moved by Commissioner Martin, seconded by Commissioner Terry, to approve the Consent  
 Agenda.  Voice vote, Aye: Fess, Terry, Martin, and Wilson.  Nay: None. Motion  
  carried unanimously. Mayor Fess then declared Resolution No.R-94-15 adopted. 
 
  NEW BUSINESS 
 
   ORD.NO. 7-15 
   An Emergency Ordinance repealing Sections 94.23, 94.24 and 94.26 of Chapter 94 and adopting  
   new section 94.23, 94.24, and 94.26 of the Municipal Code 
 
    Law Director Stacy Wall provided the Staff Report. 
 
    After considering another matter, the City Commission observed that the curfew hours in the  
    various City parks are inconsistent and requested review and amendment for consistency.  In  
    reviewing the sections listed they were found to be incomplete and not current and in need of a  
    rewrite.  
 
    Commissioners asked several questions about the issue of smoking in the city parks and asked if  
    signage could be placed at the parks, and smoking pots put at the entrances.  Commissioner Terry  
    was concerned mostly about smoking around the playground areas with the mulch. 
 
    Ms. Wall stated she will look at the current Ordinance and rewrite the sections and present it at the  
    next Commission meeting. 
 
    PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
    No one came forward to speak for or against Ordinance No. 7-15. 
 
    Ordinance No, 7-15 was given a first reading. 
 
    RES. NO. 95-15 
    A Resolution to adopt the Solid Waste Management Plan for the Miami County Solid Waste  
    Management District 
 
     Amy Welker. Health & Sanitation Director provided the Staff Report. 
 
   The City of Piqua is located within the jurisdiction of the Miami County Solid Waste Management  
    District. The District Policy Committee prepared and adopted a final draft of the Solid Waste  
    Management Plan in accordance with the Ohio Revised Code Sections 3734.52, 3734.54, and  
    3734.55. 
   
   Commissioners asked several questions regarding monthly recycling totals, how residents were  
    informed of the recycling program, and if residents had to use the new large containers, or could  
    they use a smaller container. 
 
 



 3

PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
Al Fledderman, Harney Drive, came forward and voiced his concern about the new larger container 
stating it is very hard for some residents to handle and store the containers. 
 
Ms. Welker stated she would look into getting a smaller container. 
 
Commissioner Wilson asked if it would be possible to get more recycling information out again to the 
residents.  Ms. Welker stated the recycling information is on the city web site, and flyers were sent out 
previously. 
           
 Moved by Commissioner Wilson, seconded by Commissioner Terry, that Resolution No.95-15 be 
 adopted.  Roll Call, Aye: Fess, Wilson Terry, and Martin. Nay: None.  Motion carried unanimously.   
 Mayor Fess then declared Resolution No. R-95-15 adopted. 
 
 RES. NO. R- 96-15  
 A Resolution fixing the time and place for a Public Hearing on the proposed City Tax Budget for  
 Miami County for the calendar year 2016 and Draft Appropriation Ordinance 
 
 Cynthia Holtzapple, Finance Director, presented the Staff Report. 
 
  Section 5705.18 of the Revised Code required that the Commission adopt a tax budget for the next  
  succeeding year on or before July 15, and Charter Section 49 required the submission of the draft of  
  and appropriation ordinance based upon said budget.   A Public Hearing on the proposed City Tax   
  Budget for Miami County for the year 2016 and the draft appropriation Ordinance will be held at the 
  next regular City Commission Meeting of July 7, 2015 at 7:30 P.M. 
 
   Public Comment 
 
  No one came forward to speak for or against Resolution No. R-96-15 
   
  Moved by Commissioner Martin, seconded by Commissioner Terry, that Resolution R-96-15 be  
  adopted. Roll call, Aye: Martin, Terry, Fess, and Wilson. Nay: None. Motion carried unanimously.    
  Mayor Fess then declared Resolution No. R-96-15 adopted. 
 
RES. NO. R-97-15 
A Resolution authorizing the City Manager to enter into a lease agreement to permit the usage of a 
portion of Fountain Park, Hardman Field and Hance Pavilion to the Piqua Fourth of July Association      
 
Chris Schmiesing, City Planner, provided the Staff Report. 
 
The 4th of July Association desires to utilize portions of Fountain Park to host a community festival in 
celebration of Independence Day. The event will take place on July 4 and 5m 2015 and utilize the 
Hance Pavilion, Hardman Field, Fountain Park volleyball courts and the part of Fountain Park between 
and including the hardball diamond and the dining hall.  The event traditionally includes amusement 
rides and games, and food vendors which are subject to certain license and permitting requirements.  
City staff and equipment will support the event by providing assistance with street closure, refuse 
management, and various activities, stated Mr. Schmiesing. 
 
The City Manager is authorized to permit the Piqua Fourth of July Association the use of Hance 
pavilion, Hardman Field, the Fountain Park volleyball courts and part of Fountain Park including the 
hardball diamond and the dining hall, on July 4 and 5th. The Piqua Fourth of July Association must 
obtain liability insurance satisfactory to the City Manager per the terms of the Lease Agreement and 
must comply with all terms of the Lease as set by the City.  The rental fee for the lease shall be a 
$1.00 and other valuable consideration, stated Mr. Schmiesing. 
 
 
 



 4

PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
No one came forward to speak for or against Resolution No. R-97-15. 
 
Moved by Commissioner Terry, seconded by Commissioner Martin, that Resolution No, R-97-15 be 
adopted. Roll call, Aye: Wilson, Terry, Martin, and Fess. Nay: None. Motion carried unanimously. 
Mayor Fess then declared Resolution No. R-97-15 adopted. 
 
RES. NO. R-98-15 
An Emergency Resolution to amend the contract with J & J Schlaegel, Inc. for the off-site pipeline 
project 
 
Don Friesthler, Water Plant Superintendent, provided the Staff Report. 
 

The off-site pipeline portion of the new Water Treatment Plant Project will allow for the construction of 
new raw water lines, finished water lines, and a new sludge line along SR 66.  This project is needed 
to tie pipelines for the new Water Treatment Plant into our existing system.  

The original project was bid with the understanding that a complete detour of State Route 66 was 
acceptable.  After much consideration by City Staff, it was decided that being able to keep a constant 
flow of traffic through this area would be more beneficial to everyone.  

This amendment will allow one lane of traffic to be maintained during the 20 months of construction.  
The change in traffic pattern must be in compliance with ODOT regulations.  This will help ensure the 
safety of both workers and drivers in the area. 

Jersey barriers will be put in place to allow one of lane of traffic to be separated from workers.  Traffic 
signals at both ends of the project will allow traffic to flow in one direction at a particular time through 
this lane.  The work zone will be moved throughout the project to coordinate with the work area as 
needed.  This is an emergency Resolution due to the construction time lines, stated Mr. Friesthler. 

 
Commissioner asked several questions and Mr. Friesthler provided the answers to all questions. 
 
PUBIC COMMENT 
 
No one came forward to speak for or against Resolution No. R-98-15. 
 
Moved by Commissioner Martin, seconded by Commissioner Terry, that Resolution No, R-98-15 be 
adopted. Roll call, Aye: Fess, Terry, Martin, and Wilson. Nay: None. Motion carried unanimously. 
Mayor Fess then declared Resolution R-98-15 adopted. 
 
RES.NO. R-99-15 
A Resolution requesting authorization for the purchase of a new gate for the Hydraulic Canal at Swift 
Run Lake 
 
Don Friesthler, Water Plant Superintendent provided the Staff Report. 
 
The current gate that separates Swift Run Lake from them hydraulic canal no longer works as needed, 
and is very difficult to raise or lower and does not seal properly.  This gate is a critical for the isolation 
of Swift Run Lake in case of a catastrophic event with the hydraulic canal.  Three price quotes were 
received and RW Gate Company was the lowest price.   
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
No one came forward to speak for or against Resolution No. R-99-15. 
 
Moved by Commissioner Wilson, seconded by Commissioner Terry, that Resolution No. R-99-15 be 
adopted. Roll call, Aye: Wilson, Martin, Terry, and Fess. Nay. None. Motion carried unanimously. 
Mayor Fess then declared Resolution No. R-99-15 adopted. 



 5

RES. NO. R-100-15 
A Resolution requesting authorization for the installation of a new gate for the Hydraulic Canal at Swift 
Run Lake 
 
Don Friesther, Water Plant Superintendent, provided the Staff Report. 
 
Installation of the gates requires the level of the lake and the canal to be lowered.  The installation will 
be coordinated with other work for the new water treatment plant by Peterson Construction Company.  
By combining the gate project with the other work being done the city will save approximately $50,000. 
Due to the dynamics of the project there is not a definite start date for the project to begin at this time, 
stated Mr. Friesthler. 
 
Commissioners asked several questions regarding the lowering of the water and the installation of the 
gate. Mr. Friesthler answered all questions. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
No one came forward to speak for or against Resolution No. R-100-15. 
 
Moved by Commissioner Terry, seconded by Commissioner Wilson, that Resolution No. R-100-15 be 
adopted. Roll call, Aye: Terry, Martin, Fess, and Wilson. Nay: None. Motion carried unanimously. 
Mayor Fess then declared Resolution No. R-100-15 adopted. 
 
RES. NO. R-101-15 
A Resolution approving the Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Community Development 
Allocation Program and Critical Infrastructure Program Applications for Program Year 2015 and 
authorizing the City Manager to submit the applications to the Ohio Development Services Agency, 
Office of Community Development 
 
Nikki Reese, Development Program Manager provided the Staff Report. 
 
Each year the city receives an allocation from the Ohio Development Services Agency, Office of 
Community Development to implement local activities through the Community Development Block 
Grant (CBDG) program.  The allocation for 2015 is $75,000. The city is also eligible to submit a CBDG 
Critical Infrastructure Program at the same time to assist eligible communities with high-priority, single-
purpose infrastructure improvements. The maximum grant funding is $300,000. 
 
On February 25, 2015 the 1st Public hearing was held to review CDBG Programs.  On April 7, 2015 a 
Community Development Implementation Strategy Committee meeting was held to prioritize potential 
CDBG Projects.  The proposed project is new water meters in the Southview Neighborhood.  The new 
water meters will be read by a radio receiver that the meter reader will hold outside the city vehicle. 
 
70% of the funding for the Southview Water Meter Replacement Project is from grant funding and 30% 
of the funding is from the City of Piqua water funds, stated Ms. Reese. 
 
The City will be notified in August if the Critical Infrastructure Grant is funded.  There are two other 
potential CDBG projects that have been identified as back up plans if the meter is not funded. 
 
Shane Johnson, Underground Utility Director explained how the new meters will work and how the 
readings will be taken. 
 
Commissioners asked several questions regarding the new meters and how they will be implemented.   
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
No one came forward to speak for or against Resolution No. R-101-15. 
 



 6

Moved by Commissioner Martin, seconded by Commissioner Terry, that Resolution No. R-101-15 be 
adopted. Roll Call, Aye: Martin, Fess, Wilson, and Terry. Nay: None. Motion carried unanimously. 
Mayor Fess then declared Resolution No. R-101-15 adopted. 
. 
MONTHLY REPORTS – APRIL 2014 
 
Monthly Reports for April 2015 were accepted. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
Bill Jaqua, N. Sunset Drive, came forward and voiced his concern over the Point of Economic View in 
the City of Piqua, and his concerns on the downtown businesses. 
 
Brad Boehringer, Mound Street, came forward stating Piqua is starting to become a vibrant 
community, and he is proud to a resident of the City of Piqua as they are moving in the right direction 
by keeping a positive outlook. 
 
Al Fledderman, Harney Street, stated he has lived in Piqua for 31 years and loves it in Piqua. 
 
Mr. Fledderman further stated he will be sitting in the “Dunking Tank” Sunday, July 5th from 4:00 – 5:00 
P.M. at Fountain Park at the 4th of July Celebration, and invited citizens to come out and take a shot at 
him. 
 
City Manager’s Report 
City Manager Huff announced the Piqua Municipal Swimming Pool opened Saturday, June 13, 2015. 
 
City Manager Huff stated the city had great participation in the Miami Valley Cycling Summit with over 
500 attendees, and the I Love Piqua Community Workshop with over 350 attendees.  Both of these 
events attracted a large number of people to the community. 
 
City Manager Huff further explained the I love Piqua series, and what the purpose is. A lot of great 
events will be coming soon.  
 
The first Rock Piqua Concert will take place on June 20th at Lock 9 Park from 7:00 – 11:00 P.M.  
 
Chris Schmiesing has been a real champion for these projects, and the city departments are very 
involved with these projects to. 
 
City Manager Huff further stated he hopes the citizens appreciate the expertise of Don Friesthler and 
his staff in the Water Department, as they are very good at what they do, and we are fortunate to have 
them. 
 
Mayor Fess stated she has heard from staff members the City Manager’s leadership is encouraging to 
them, and the job Mr. Huff does certainly makes them want to work hard for him. 
 
Commissioners Comments 
 
Commission Martin congratulated all of the Bicyclist, Mike and Liz Gutmann, and Chris Schmiesing on 
their work on the Bicycle Summit.   
 
Commissioner Martin encouraged citizens to attend the Rock Piqua Concert, also congratulated the 
4th of July committee for all the years of service to the citizens of Piqua, and wished them the best this 
year. 
 
 Commissioner Terry thanked the bicyclist, and the 4th of July Committee for all their hard work.   
 



 7

Commissioner Terry announced Camp Laugh-A-Lot, sponsored by the Piqua Optimist Club will be 
held on June 22-26 for children ages 6-12 can participate.  Registration at 773-6698 or www. 
laughalotcamps.com. 
 
The Salvation Army provides a meal in the summer for children on a daily basis.  Each Saturday 
during the month of July they will be having a Christmas in July bell ringing campaign at the Piqua 
Kroger Store to raise funds for that project, stated Commissioner Terry. 
 
Commissioner Wilson stated he appreciates all the work the 4th of July Association has done over the 
years. 
 
Commissioner Wilson congratulated the Bike Summit committee stating they did a great job, and also 
congratulated Mike and Liz Gutmann on the outstanding job they did to promote the City of Piqua, and 
thanked all the volunteers who supported and worked to make it a great event. 
 
Commissioner Wilson encouraged citizens to attend the Rock Piqua Concert as they showcase the 
City of Piqua. 
 
Mayor Fess thanked the 4th of July Committee and all of the volunteers for all they have done over the 
years.  The City will strive to provide a great 4th of July Celebration in 2016. 
 
Mayor Fess congratulated Jim Drieling on his service to the City of Piqua. 
 
Mayor Fess mentioned at the Bicycle Summit Dayton Mayor Nan Walley introduce her to the Mayor of 
Pittsburg, who stated “what a beautiful city you have, so charming and unique”. Mayor Fess stated she 
appreciates the comments made by both Mayors. 
 
Moved by Commissioner Martin, seconded by Commissioner Terry, to adjourn from the Regular 
Commission Meeting at 9:15 P.M. Voice vote, Aye: Martin, Wilson, Terry, and Fess. Nay: None. 

 
 
            
       ______________________________ 
       LUCINDA L. FESS,  MAYOR   

     PASSED: ______________________   
 

     ATTEST: _______________________ 
               REBECCA J. COOL 
          CLERK OF COMMISSION 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 











PUBLIC HEARING 
RESOLUTION NO. R-102-15  

 
 

A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING FOR STATUTORY 
PURPOSES A BUDGET FOR THE CALENDAR YEAR 
2016 

 
 

WHEREAS, Section 5705.28 of the Revised Code requires that this 
Commission adopt a tax budget for the next succeeding fiscal year; and 
 
 WHEREAS, said tax budget, identified as the “2016 County Tax Budget” and 
incorporated by reference herein, has been presented to this Commission; 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Commission of the City of 
Piqua, Miami County, Ohio, the majority of all members elected thereto concurring, 
that: 
 

SEC. 1: The 2016 County Tax Budget for the City of Piqua, Ohio is 
hereby accepted as current for all statutory purposes; 

  
SEC. 2: Pursuant to Charter Section 49, receipt of the 2016 draft 

appropriation ordinance is hereby acknowledged; 
 

 SEC. 3: The Clerk of this Commission is hereby authorized and directed 
to certify a true copy of this Resolution and of the 2016 County Tax Budget to the 
Miami County Budget Commission; 

 
 SEC. 4: This Resolution shall take effect and be in force from and after 
the earliest period allowed by law. 
 
 
 
 

      ____________________________ 
       LUCINDA L. FESS, MAYOR 
   
 
 
 
PASSED:   _______________________ 
 
ATTEST:    _______________________ 
        REBECCA J. COOL 
                   CLERK OF COMMISSION 



 
 

(Shou

 

 
AG

 
 

(Incl

 

(Inclu

(In

ST

 

ME

RE
uld match reso

SU

GENDA CLA

APPROVA

BA
ludes descriptio

a

BUD
FINAN

udes project co

nclude Deny /A

PROJE

TAFF RECOM

AT

EETING DAT

EPORT TITL
olution/ordinanc

title

UBMITTED B

ASSIFICATIO

ALS/REVIEW

ACKGROUN
on, background
and justification

DGETING AN
CIAL IMPAC
osts and fundin

sources

OPTION
Approval Option

ECT TIMELIN

MMENDATIO

TTACHMENT

 

 
E 

 
July 7, 2

E 
ce 
e) 

 

 
A Resolu
2016. 

Y 
Name &
Departm

N 
 

Conse

S 
City M
Asst. 
Depar

 
D 
d, 
n) 

 

 
We are r
our Miam
first hav
and publ

D 
T 

ng 
s) 

Budgete
Expendi
Source o
Narrativ

 
S 
n) 

 
 

1. App
2. App
3. Rej
4.  

 
E 

 

 
Need to 

 
N 

 
 

 
Approve

S  1.Tax Bu
2.Draft O
calendar

 

Com
Staf
 
 
 
 

2015 

ution Accep

& Title: Cynth
ment:  Financ

ent 

Manager 
City Manag
rtment Direc

required to fi
mi County B
e the Resolu
lic hearing b
d $:  
ture $:  

of Funds: A
ve:  S
proved Reso
prove Resolu
ect Resoluti

file approve

e Resolution

udget dated 
Ordinance to
r year 2016

mmissi
ff Repo

ting for Stat

hia A. Holtz
ce 

 
Ordinanc

ger/Developm
ctor;  

file and appro
Budget Comm
ution approv
being properl

Annual Budg
See attached

olution as pro
ution with ch
on and advis

ed Resolution

 as proposed

July 7, 2015
o make Appr

ion Ag
ort 

tutory Purpo

zapple, Asst.

ce 
 

ment 

oved Resolu
mission on o
ed by our Ci
ly conducted

get 
d letter for de
oposed. 
hanges being
se staff of ho

n with Miam

d. 

5. 
ropriations f

genda  

oses a Budge

 City Manag

Resolution 

Asst. City M
Law Directo
Other:  

ution and Co
or before Jul
ity Commiss
d. 

etail. 

g made to th
ow to procee

mi County by

for The City 

Item

          

et for the Cal

ger & Financ

 
Re

Manager/Fin
or 

ounty Tax Bu
ly 20, 2015. 
sion with ad

he amounts p
ed. 

y July 20, 20

of Piqua for

m # 3

 

lendar Year 

ce Director

gular 

nance 

udget with 
We must 

dvertising 

proposed. 

015 

r the 

















  A DRAFT ORDINANCE TO MAKE APPROPRIATIONS FOR  
THE CITY OF PIQUA FOR THE CALENDAR YEAR 2016 

 
WHEREAS, Section 49 of the Piqua Charter requires the submission of a draft 

appropriation ordinance at this time; 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Commission of the City of Piqua, 
Miami County, Ohio, the majority of all members elected thereto concurring that: 
 

SEC. 1: There be appropriated from the City funds as follows: 
 

PROPOSED 2016 
GENERAL FUND (001) $6,721,086 
NEIGHBORHOOD IMPROVEMENT TEAM (104) 150,000 
PARKS DEPARTMENT (105)  509,889 
SAFETY (106)             9,705,342                                    
DUI EDUCATIONAL FUND (109)             1,000 
MAUSOLEUM FUND (110)     1,500 
PRO-PIQUA (128)                74,000 

 POLICE AUXILIARY (120)                1,500 
INCOME TAX (407)                         9,000,000 

 STREET DEPARTMENT (101)     3,003,753 
 STREET 1/4% INCOME TAX (103)     4,669,716 

MANDATORY DRUG FINE (111)     1,000 
CHIP 2012 (117)       526,000 
DISTRESS SET-ASIDE (118)     375,000 
CHIP PROGRAM INCOME (119)     63,900 
DEMOLITION DEFENSE FUND (126)    63,822 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT (FORMULA FUNDS) (122) 75,000 
BROWNFIELD EPA GRANT (131)     200,000 
REVOLVING LOAN (130)       46,709 
ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT (135)    18,473 

 FEMA FUND (139)        20,000 
            AGRICULTURE REVOLVING LOAN (142)    36,000 

LAW ENFORCEMENT TRUST (609)                                              11,032 
CONSERVANCY (611)         54,774 
UNCLAIMED TRUST (606)          1,000 
EMPLOYEE FLEXIBLE SPENDING (615)              180,000 
INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY (408)   597,612 
LIABILITY INSURANCE RESERVE (125)  450,000 
WORKMAN’S COMP. RESERVE (124)   500,000 
HEALTH CARE PLAN (614)     130,000 
SPECIAL ASSESSMENT (202)                 34,442 
SWIMMING POOL BONDS D.S. (221)    8,430 
GOLF COURSE 9 HOLE EXPANSION BONDS (243)  167,190 
OWDA ’08 EQUALIZATION BASIN DEBT SERVICE (254)     303,392 
FIRE EQUIPMENT ’08 G.O. BOND (255)   50,963 
WATER PLANT OWDA DEBT SERVICE (256)  24,869,900 
 
 
 
 
 



 
         PROPOSED 2016 
WASTEWATER PLANT ENG. DEBT SERVICE (257) 4,000,000 
WATER PLANT DEBT SERVICE (258)   2,618,635 
SIB LOAN (216)      173,755 
SWIMMING POOL CONSTRUCTION (323)   5 
SPECIAL ASSESS. PROJECT (700’S)              32,000 
ELECTIC SYSTEM (401)     31,717,772 
WATER SYSTEM (403)     30,794,808 
WASTEWATER SYSTEM (404)    7,498,591 
REFUSE (405)      1,810,063 
GOLF COURSE (409)     824,665 
FORT PIQUA PLAZA (410)     313,562 
STORM WATER UTILITY (411)    1,762,348 
SWIMMING POOL UTILITY (415)    186,180 
UTILITY BUSINESS OFFICE (412-413)   31,400 

 
SEC. 2: That sums expended from the appropriations and which are proper charges 

against any other department, or against any person, firm or corporation which are repaid with 
the period covered by such appropriations shall be considered re-appropriated for such original 
purposes; provided, that the net total of expenditures under any item of said appropriation shall 
not exceed the amount of the item. 
 

SEC. 3: That the Director of Finance is hereby authorized and directed to draw her 
warrant upon the City Treasury for the amounts appropriated in this order when claims are 
properly presented and approved, the same to be chargeable to the appropriations for the year 
2016 when passed and legally contracted for in conformity by law. 
 

SEC. 4: That all ordinances, or parts of ordinances, inconsistent with this ordinance be 
and they are hereby repealed. 
 

SEC. 5: That this ordinance shall take effect and be in force from and after passage. 
 

 ___________________________ 
      LUCINDA L. FESS, MAYOR 

PASSED:_______________________ 
 
ATTEST:_______________________ 

    REBECCA J. COOL 
    CLERK OF COMMISSION 



RESOLUTION NO.  R-103-15 
 

A RESOLUTION AWARDING A CONTRACT 
TO L.J. DEWEESE CO., INC. FOR THE 
CONSTRUCTION OF THE SAFE ROUTES 
TO SCHOOL IMPROVEMENTS PROJECT 

 
 

 WHEREAS, on January 6, 2015, this Commission passed Resolution No. 
R-6-15 authorizing the City Purchasing Analyst to advertise for bids, according to 
law, for the Safe Routes to School Improvements Project; and 

 
WHEREAS, after proper advertisement, bids were opened resulting in the bid 

tabulation as listed in Exhibit A attached hereto;   
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Commission of the City of 
Piqua, Miami County, Ohio, the majority of all members elected thereto concurring, 
that: 

 
SEC. 1: A contract is hereby approved with L.J. DeWeese Co., Inc. as 

the lowest, responsible bidder for the Safe Routes to School Improvements Project 
and the City Manager is hereby authorized to execute a contract with said bidder 
pursuant to contract specifications.  

 
SEC. 2: The Finance Director certifies that funds are available and is 

hereby authorized to draw her warrant from time to time on the appropriate account 
of the city treasury in payment according to contract terms, not exceeding a total of 
$677,500. 

 
SEC. 3: This Resolution shall take effect and be in force from and after 

the earliest period allowed by law. 
 
 
      ____________________________ 
      LUCINDA L. FESS, MAYOR 
 
 
 
PASSED:   _______________________ 
 
 
ATTEST:    _______________________ 
        REBECCA J. COOL 
                   CLERK OF COMMISSION 



 

Item # 4
 

Commission Agenda             
Staff Report 
 
 
 
 

 
MEETING DATE 

 
July 7, 2015 

 
REPORT TITLE 

(Should match resolution/ordinance 
title) 

A Resolution awarding a contract to L.J. DeWeese Co., Inc. for the construction 
of the Safe Routes to School Improvements Project. 

 
SUBMITTED BY 

Name & Title: Amy L. Havenar, P.E., City Engineer 
Department:  Engineering 

 
AGENDA CLASSIFICATION 

 

 
Consent 

 
Ordinance 

 
Resolution 

 
Regular 

 
APPROVALS/REVIEWS 

City Manager Asst. City Manager/Finance 
Asst. City Manager/Development Law Director 
Department Director Other:  

BACKGROUND 
(Includes description, background, 

and justification) 
 

On June 23, 2015, one bid was received for the Safe Routes to School 
Improvements Project (see attached Exhibit A).  In general, the work will 
consist of the installation of new pavement markings and signage, the 
installation of ADA compliant curb ramps, the replacement of damaged 
sidewalk & curbs, the removal of traffic signals, and the construction of a multi-
use path to the Junior High School from Looney Road.     

The City received a grant in May of 2012 for the construction of these 
infrastructure projects around the Piqua Junior High School site, Washington 
Intermediate School site, and the Wilder Intermediate School site. 

BUDGETING AND 
FINANCIAL IMPACT 

(Includes project costs and funding 
sources) 

Budgeted $:  $677,500.00 

Expenditure $:  $677,500.00 (includes 10% contingency) 

Source of Funds: Fund 103 – Street Income Tax 
Safe Routes to School Grant 

Narrative  The City has received Safe Routes to School grant funding 
for the design and construction in the amount of $499,915.  
After design, there is approximately $453,000 remaining in 
the grant to cover a portion of the construction.  The 
remaining funds will come from the 103 Fund and was 
budgeted for in the 2015 Budget.   

 
OPTIONS 

(Include Deny /Approval Option) 
 

1. Approve the resolution and complete the Safe Routes to School 
Improvements Project.   

2. Do not approve the resolution and do not complete the Safe Routes to 
School Improvements project and return the funding. 

 



 
PROJECT TIMELINE 

 

The work will begin as soon as possible and has a completion date of October 
30, 2015. 

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 

 

Approve the resolution to allow for the completion of the Safe Routes to School 
Improvement project.   

ATTACHMENTS  Bid Tabulation (Exhibit A) 

 



Bid Opening: June 23, 2015 

Item Quantity Price Extension

201 - Clearing and Grubbing - LS 1.00               20,000.00$     20,000.00$     
202 - Pavement Removed - SY 395.00            36.00$            14,220.00$     
202 - Walk Removed - SF 7,270.00         3.50$              25,445.00$     
202 - Pipe Removed - LF 120.00            15.00$            1,800.00$       
202 - Curb Removed, As per Plan - LF 548.00            15.00$            8,220.00$       
202 - Curb and Gutter Removed - LF 155.00            15.00$            2,325.00$       
202 - Catch Basin Removed, As Per Plan - EA 4.00               350.00$          1,400.00$       
202 - Fence Removed As Per Plan - LF 285.00            7.00$              1,995.00$       
202 - Removal Misc. Bollard - EA 2.00               100.00$          200.00$          
690 - Special Misc. Railroad Tie Removal - EA 5.00               50.00$            250.00$          
690 - Special Misc. Relocate Retaining Wall - EA 1.00               2,000.00$       2,000.00$       
608 - 4" Concrete Sidewalk, As Per Plan - SF 8,939.00         5.50$              49,164.50$     
608 - 2" Asphalt Concrete Walk, As Per Plan - SF 12,639.00       2.00$              25,278.00$     
609 - Curb Type 6, As Per Plan - LF 820.00            25.00$            20,500.00$     
609 - Combination Curb and Gutter Type 2, As Per Plan - LF 155.00            25.00$            3,875.00$       
690 - Special Misc. Curb Ramp, Type A2, As Per Plan - SF 8.00               1,000.00$       8,000.00$       
690 - Special Misc. Curb Ramp, Type B2, As Per Plan - SF 25.00              1,000.00$       25,000.00$     
690 - Special Misc. Brick Pavement, As Per Plan - SF 161.00            30.00$            4,830.00$       

Total Roadway 214,502.50$   

653 - Topsoil Furnished and Placed - CY 130.50            50.00$            6,525.00$       
659 - Seeding and Mulching,  - SY 4,875.00         2.00$              9,750.00$       
832 - Erosion Control - LS 1.00               3,000.00$       3,000.00$       

Total Erosion Control 19,275.00$     

511 - Class C Concrete, As Per Plan - CY 15.00              100.00$          1,500.00$       
601 - Rock Channel Protection, Type c with Filter Fabric, As Per Plan - CY 5.00               250.00$          1,250.00$       
611 - 4" Conduit, Type B As Per Plan - LF 50.00              8.00$              400.00$          
611 - 6" Conduit, Type C As Per Plan - LF 268.00            20.00$            5,360.00$       
611 - 8" Conduit, Type B As Per Plan - LF 50.00              15.00$            750.00$          
611 - 10" Conduit, Type B As Per Plan - LF 75.00              25.00$            1,875.00$       
611 - 12" Conduit, Type B - LF 86.00              80.00$            6,880.00$       
209 - Linear Grading, As Per Plan - STA 6.50               500.00$          3,250.00$       
690 - Special Misc. Bioretention Soil, As Per Plan - SF 891.00            12.00$            10,692.00$     
611 - Catch Basin No. 6 - EA 5.00               3,500.00$       17,500.00$     
611 - Catch Basin 2-2B - EA 2.00               2,000.00$       4,000.00$       
611 - Manhole No. 1 - EA 1.00               3,500.00$       3,500.00$       

Total Drainage 56,957.00$     

253 - Pavement Repair, As Per Plan - SY 102.00            75.00$            7,650.00$       
Total Pavement 7,650.00$       

625 - Luminaire, Conventional, As Per Plan - EA 10.00              400.00$          4,000.00$       
625 - Light Pole, Conventional, Monoarm, AT4B32.5 - EA 10.00              2,200.00$       22,000.00$     
625 - Light Pole Foundation, 24" x 6' Deep - EA 10.00              1,600.00$       16,000.00$     
625 - Pull Box, 725.08, 18" - EA 1.00               900.00$          900.00$          
625 - Conduit, 2", 725.051 - LF 1,741.00         6.00$              10,446.00$     
625 - Trench - LF 1,741.00         11.00$            19,151.00$     
625 - Conduit, Jacked or Drilled, 725.04 - LF 46.00              80.00$            3,680.00$       
625 - Power Service, As Per Plan - EA 1.00               13,000.00$     13,000.00$     
625 - No. 10 AWG Pole and Bracket Cable - LF 730.00            1.00$              730.00$          
625 - No. 4 AWG 5000 Volt Distribution Cable - LF 5,661.00         3.00$              16,983.00$     
625 - Connection, Fused Pull Apart - EA 10.00              100.00$          1,000.00$       
625 - Connection, Unfused Pull Apart - EA 10.00              110.00$          1,100.00$       
625 - Connection, Unfused Permanent - EA 3.00               100.00$          300.00$          
625 - Ground Rod - EA 24.00              250.00$          6,000.00$       
625 - Plastic Caution Tape - LF 1,741.00         0.15$              261.15$          
630 - Ground Mounted Support, No. 3 Post - LF 571.00            12.00$            6,852.00$       
630 - Sign, Flat Sheet - SF 316.00            20.00$            6,320.00$       
630 - Removal of Ground Mounted Sign and Disposal - EA 4.00               15.00$            60.00$            
630 - Removal of Ground Mounted Sign and Reerection - EA 7.00               65.00$            455.00$          
630 - Removal of Ground Mounted Post Support and Disposal - EA 11.00              20.00$            220.00$          
630 - Signing, Misc.: Solar Powered RRFB School Crossing Sign Assembly - EA 14.00              5,235.00$       73,290.00$     
644 - Stop Line - LF 529.00            6.00$              3,174.00$       
644 - Crosswalk Line - LF 3,274.00         3.00$              9,822.00$       
644 - Removal of Pavement Marking - LF 2,863.00         3.00$              8,589.00$       
647 - Pavement Marking, Misc.: Crosswalk Line, Type B125 - LF 500.00            21.00$            10,500.00$     

Total Lighting & Traffic Control 234,833.15$   

614 - Maintaining Traffic, As Per Plan - EA 1.00               29,600.00$     29,600.00$     
623 - Construction Layout Stakes and Surveying - EA 1.00               10,000.00$     10,000.00$     
624 - Mobilization - EA 1.00               25,000.00$     25,000.00$     
690 - Special Miscellaneous, Bioretention Planting, Tila Tomentosa - EA 8.00               325.00$          2,600.00$       
690 - Special Miscellaneous, Bioretention Planting, Buxus Microphylia "Green Velvet" - EA 48.00              65.00$            3,120.00$       
690 - Special Miscellaneous, Bioretention Planting, Rhus Aromatica "Gro-Low" - EA 28.00              65.00$            1,820.00$       
690 - Special Miscellaneous, Bioretention Planting, Berberis Thunberghii Atropurpurea "Crimson Pygmy" - EA 28.00              65.00$            1,820.00$       
690 - Special Miscellaneous, Bioretention Planting, Rudbeckia Hirta - EA 72.00              45.00$            3,240.00$       
690 - Special Miscellaneous, Bioretention Planting, Hemerocallis "Stella D' Oro" - EA 47.00              45.00$            2,115.00$       
690 - Special Miscellaneous, Bioretention Planting, Echinacia Purpurea "Kim's Knee High" - EA 52.00              65.00$            3,380.00$       

Total Miscellaneous 82,695.00$     
Grand Total 615,912.65$   

Miscellaneous

BID TAB
CITY OF PIQUA - 13-05 D07-SRTS MIA PIQUA INFRASTRUCTURE, PID 93747 

L.J. DeWeese Co., Inc.

Roadway

Erosion Control

Drainage

Pavement

Lighting & Traffic Control

EXHIBIT A



RESOLUTION NO.  R-104-15 
 

A RESOLUTION AWARDING A CONTRACT 
TO UNDERGROUND UTILITIES, INC. FOR 
THE GARBRY ROAD WATER MAIN 
EXTENSION PROJECT 

 
 

 WHEREAS, on January 6, 2015, this Commission passed Resolution No. 
R-6-15 authorizing the City Purchasing Analyst to advertise for bids, according to 
law, for the Garbry Road Water Main Extension Project; and 

 
WHEREAS, after proper advertisement, bids were opened resulting in the 

tabulation of bids as listed in Exhibit A attached hereto;   
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Commission of the City of 
Piqua, Miami County, Ohio, the majority of all members elected thereto concurring, 
that: 

 
SEC. 1: A contract is hereby approved with Underground Utilities, Inc. 

as the lowest, responsible bidder for the Garbry Road Water Main Extension Project 
and the City Manager is hereby authorized to execute a contract with said bidder 
pursuant to contract specifications.  

 
SEC. 2: The Finance Director certifies that funds are available and is 

hereby authorized to draw her warrant from time to time on the appropriate account 
of the city treasury in payment according to contract terms, not exceeding a total of 
$358,500. 

 
SEC. 3: This Resolution shall take effect and be in force from and after 

the earliest period allowed by law. 
 
 
      ____________________________ 
      LUCINDA L. FESS, MAYOR 
 
 
 
PASSED:   _______________________ 
 
 
ATTEST:    _______________________ 
        REBECCA J. COOL 
                   CLERK OF COMMISSION 



 

Item # 5
 

Commission Agenda             
Staff Report 
 
 
 

 
MEETING DATE 

 
July 7, 2015 

 
REPORT TITLE 

(Should match resolution/ordinance 
title) 

 

A Resolution awarding a contract to Underground Utilities, Inc. for the Garbry 
Road Water Main Extension Project. 

 
SUBMITTED BY 

Name & Title: Amy L. Havenar, City Engineer 

Department:  Engineering 

AGENDA CLASSIFICATION Consent Ordinance Resolution Regular 

 
APPROVALS/REVIEWS 

City Manager Asst. City Manager/Finance 
Asst. City Manager/Development Law Director 
Department Director Other:  

 
BACKGROUND 

(Includes description, background, 
and justification) 

 

On June 23, 2015, four bids were received for the Garbry Road Water Main 
Extension Project (see attached Exhibit A).   

The project will consist of the installation of a new 16” water main along 
Garbry Road from Keinle Drive to U.S. Route 36.  This new water main will 
complete the water loop from the E. Ash Street water tower to provide a 
redundant water supply in conjunction with the future growth projection as 
identified in the City’s Water Distribution Master Plan.    

 
BUDGETING AND 

FINANCIAL IMPACT 
(Includes project costs and funding 

sources) 

Budgeted $:  $358,500  

Expenditure $:  $358,500 (includes 10% contingency) 

Source of Funds: Water Department Funds  

Narrative:  This resolution includes a 10% contingency for items of 
work which may be required which are not included in 
the original plans and specifications.   

 
OPTIONS 

(Include Deny /Approval Option) 
 
 

1. Approve the resolution and complete the Garbry Road Water Main 
Extension Project. 

2. Do not approve the resolution and do not complete the Garbry Road Water 
Main Extension Project and provide further direction to staff.    

PROJECT TIMELINE It is anticipated that the water line project will begin immediately with work 
anticipated to be complete by September 30, 2015.       

STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
 

Approve the resolution to allow for the completion of the Garbry Road Water 
Main Extension Project. 

ATTACHMENTS  Bid Tabulation (Exhibit A) 

 



B
id

 O
p

e
n

in
g

: 
J
u

n
e

 2
3
, 

2
0
1
5
 

It
e
m

Q
u

a
n

ti
ty

P
ri

c
e

E
x
te

n
s

io
n

P
ri

c
e

E
x
te

n
s

io
n

P
ri

c
e

E
x
te

n
s

io
n

P
ri

c
e

E
x
te

n
s

io
n

S
P

L
 -

 B
O

N
D

IN
G

 &
 I

N
S

U
R

A
N

C
E

 -
 L

S
1

  
  

  
  

  
 

1
0
,0

0
0
.0

0
$
  

  
  

  
1
0
,0

0
0
.0

0
$
  

  
  

  
4
,6

3
0
.0

0
$
  

  
  

  
  

4
,6

3
0
.0

0
$
  

  
  

  
  

5
,0

0
0
.0

0
$
  

  
  

  
  

5
,0

0
0
.0

0
$
  

  
  

  
  

5
,6

1
2
.4

0
$
  

  
  

  
  

5
,6

1
2
.4

0
$
  

  
  

  
  

6
2
4
.0

 -
 M

O
B

IL
IZ

A
T

IO
N

 -
 L

S
1

  
  

  
  

  
 

1
6
,0

0
0
.0

0
$
  

  
  

  
1
6
,0

0
0
.0

0
$
  

  
  

  
9
,9

6
8
.0

0
$
  

  
  

  
  

9
,9

6
8
.0

0
$
  

  
  

  
  

2
,5

0
0
.0

0
$
  

  
  

  
  

2
,5

0
0
.0

0
$
  

  
  

  
  

5
,3

2
0
.4

0
$
  

  
  

  
  

5
,3

2
0
.4

0
$
  

  
  

  
  

2
0
1
.0

 -
 C

L
E

A
R

IN
G

 A
N

D
 G

R
U

B
B

IN
G

 -
 L

S
1

  
  

  
  

  
 

5
,0

0
0
.0

0
$
  

  
  

  
  

5
,0

0
0
.0

0
$
  

  
  

  
  

2
,2

4
0
.0

0
$
  

  
  

  
  

2
,2

4
0
.0

0
$
  

  
  

  
  

1
,6

5
0
.0

0
$
  

  
  

  
  

1
,6

5
0
.0

0
$
  

  
  

  
  

3
5
8
.2

5
$
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

3
5
8
.2

5
$
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

6
1
4
.0

 -
 M

A
IN

T
E

N
A

N
C

E
 O

F
 T

R
A

F
F

IC
 -

 L
S

1
  

  
  

  
  

 
1
,0

0
0
.0

0
$
  

  
  

  
  

1
,0

0
0
.0

0
$
  

  
  

  
  

1
0
,5

2
8
.0

0
$
  

  
  

  
1
0
,5

2
8
.0

0
$
  

  
  

  
3
,5

0
0
.0

0
$
  

  
  

  
  

3
,5

0
0
.0

0
$
  

  
  

  
  

1
4
,2

7
9
.0

5
$
  

  
  

  
1
4
,2

7
9
.0

5
$
  

  
  

  

6
2
3
.0

 -
 C

O
N

S
T

R
U

C
T

IO
N

 L
A

Y
O

U
T

 S
T

A
K

IN
G

 -
 L

S
1

  
  

  
  

  
 

2
,0

0
0
.0

0
$
  

  
  

  
  

2
,0

0
0
.0

0
$
  

  
  

  
  

1
,4

5
6
.0

0
$
  

  
  

  
  

1
,4

5
6
.0

0
$
  

  
  

  
  

3
,2

2
0
.0

0
$
  

  
  

  
  

3
,2

2
0
.0

0
$
  

  
  

  
  

2
,9

8
5
.3

0
$
  

  
  

  
  

2
,9

8
5
.3

0
$
  

  
  

  
  

6
5
9
.0

 -
 S

E
E

D
IN

G
 A

N
D

 M
U

L
C

H
IN

G
 -

 L
S

1
  

  
  

  
  

 
5
,0

0
0
.0

0
$
  

  
  

  
  

5
,0

0
0
.0

0
$
  

  
  

  
  

1
3
,2

8
3
.0

0
$
  

  
  

  
1
3
,2

8
3
.0

0
$
  

  
  

  
9
,9

0
0
.0

0
$
  

  
  

  
  

9
,9

0
0
.0

0
$
  

  
  

  
  

1
1
,6

1
6
.8

0
$
  

  
  

  
1
1
,6

1
6
.8

0
$
  

  
  

  

4
4
8
.0

 -
 1

-1
/2

" 
A

S
P

H
A

L
T

 C
O

N
C

R
E

T
E

 S
U

R
F

A
C

E
 C

O
U

R
S

E
, 

P
G

 6
4
-2

2
, 

T
Y

P
E

 1
 -

 C
Y

1
0

  
  

  
  

 
2
6
0
.0

0
$
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

2
,6

0
0
.0

0
$
  

  
  

  
  

2
9
4
.0

0
$
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

2
,9

4
0
.0

0
$
  

  
  

  
  

3
1
0
.0

0
$
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

3
,1

0
0
.0

0
$
  

  
  

  
  

1
9
5
.8

5
$
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

1
,9

5
8
.5

0
$
  

  
  

  
  

4
4
8
.0

 -
 2

-1
/2

" 
A

S
P

H
A

L
T

 C
O

N
C

R
E

T
E

 I
N

T
E

R
M

E
D

IA
T

E
 C

O
U

R
S

E
, 

P
G

6
4
-2

2
, 

T
Y

P
E

 2
 -

 C
Y

1
5

  
  

  
  

 
2
6
0
.0

0
$
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

3
,9

0
0
.0

0
$
  

  
  

  
  

2
7
9
.0

0
$
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

4
,1

8
5
.0

0
$
  

  
  

  
  

3
2
0
.0

0
$
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

4
,8

0
0
.0

0
$
  

  
  

  
  

3
4
9
.6

0
$
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

5
,2

4
4
.0

0
$
  

  
  

  
  

4
0
8
.0

 -
 B

IT
U

M
IN

O
U

S
 P

R
IM

E
 C

O
A

T
 @

 0
.4

0
 G

A
L

/S
Y

 O
V

E
R

 B
A

C
K

F
IL

L
 -

 G
A

L
7
0

  
  

  
  

 
6
.0

0
$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

4
2
0
.0

0
$
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

6
.5

0
$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

4
5
5
.0

0
$
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

7
.0

0
$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

4
9
0
.0

0
$
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

4
.2

0
$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

2
9
4
.0

0
$
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

S
P

L
 -

 A
S

P
H

A
L
T

 D
R

IV
E

 R
E

P
L
A

C
E

M
E

N
T

 -
 S

Y
4
0

  
  

  
  

 
3
0
.0

0
$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
1
,2

0
0
.0

0
$
  

  
  

  
  

7
4
.4

0
$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
2
,9

7
6
.0

0
$
  

  
  

  
  

5
4
.0

0
$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
2
,1

6
0
.0

0
$
  

  
  

  
  

6
6
.2

5
$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
2
,6

5
0
.0

0
$
  

  
  

  
  

6
3
8
.0

 -
 1

6
" 

D
U

C
T

IL
E

 I
R

O
N

 W
A

T
E

R
L
IN

E
 W

IT
H

 G
R

A
N

U
L
A

R
 B

A
C

K
F

IL
L
 -

 L
F

2
,4

5
0

  
  

8
4
.0

0
$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
2
0
5
,8

0
0
.0

0
$
  

  
  

9
6
.8

0
$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
2
3
7
,1

6
0
.0

0
$
  

  
  

1
1
5
.0

0
$
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

2
8
1
,7

5
0
.0

0
$
  

  
  

1
1
4
.8

0
$
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

2
8
1
,2

6
0
.0

0
$
  

  
  

6
3
8
.0

 -
 1

6
" 

W
A

T
E

R
 V

A
L
V

E
 -

 E
A

1
  

  
  

  
  

 
3
,3

0
0
.0

0
$
  

  
  

  
  

3
,3

0
0
.0

0
$
  

  
  

  
  

3
,0

6
4
.0

0
$
  

  
  

  
  

3
,0

6
4
.0

0
$
  

  
  

  
  

3
,1

5
0
.0

0
$
  

  
  

  
  

3
,1

5
0
.0

0
$
  

  
  

  
  

7
,5

0
8
.0

0
$
  

  
  

  
  

7
,5

0
8
.0

0
$
  

  
  

  
  

6
3
8
.0

 -
 3

/4
" 

C
H

L
O

R
IN

A
T

IO
N

 T
A

P
 -

 E
A

2
  

  
  

  
  

 
2
0
0
.0

0
$
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

4
0
0
.0

0
$
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

7
2
3
.0

0
$
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

1
,4

4
6
.0

0
$
  

  
  

  
  

8
0
0
.0

0
$
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

1
,6

0
0
.0

0
$
  

  
  

  
  

1
1
4
.1

0
$
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

2
2
8
.2

0
$
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

6
3
8
.0

 -
 4

5
 D

E
G

R
E

E
 B

E
N

D
 -

 1
6
" 

- 
E

A
8

  
  

  
  

  
 

5
0
0
.0

0
$
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

4
,0

0
0
.0

0
$
  

  
  

  
  

1
,5

5
2
.0

0
$
  

  
  

  
  

1
2
,4

1
6
.0

0
$
  

  
  

  
1
,3

0
0
.0

0
$
  

  
  

  
  

1
0
,4

0
0
.0

0
$
  

  
  

  
1
,5

9
9
.6

5
$
  

  
  

  
  

1
2
,7

9
7
.2

0
$
  

  
  

  

6
3
8
.0

 -
 1

1
.2

5
 D

E
G

R
E

E
 B

E
N

D
-1

6
" 

- 
E

A
6

  
  

  
  

  
 

5
0
0
.0

0
$
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

3
,0

0
0
.0

0
$
  

  
  

  
  

1
,5

0
5
.0

0
$
  

  
  

  
  

9
,0

3
0
.0

0
$
  

  
  

  
  

1
,2

5
0
.0

0
$
  

  
  

  
  

7
,5

0
0
.0

0
$
  

  
  

  
  

1
,6

1
3
.1

0
$
  

  
  

  
  

9
,6

7
8
.6

0
$
  

  
  

  
  

6
3
8
.0

 -
 1

6
"x

1
0
" 

R
E

D
U

C
E

R
 -

 E
A

1
  

  
  

  
  

 
8
0
0
.0

0
$
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

8
0
0
.0

0
$
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

1
,0

9
9
.0

0
$
  

  
  

  
  

1
,0

9
9
.0

0
$
  

  
  

  
  

9
7
5
.0

0
$
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

9
7
5
.0

0
$
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

8
4
9
.6

5
$
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

8
4
9
.6

5
$
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

6
3
8
.0

 -
 F

IR
E

 H
Y

D
R

A
N

T
 A

S
S

E
M

B
L
Y

 I
N

C
L
U

D
IN

G
 6

" 
V

A
L
V

E
 A

N
D

 T
E

E
 -

 E
A

8
  

  
  

  
  

 
5
,6

0
0
.0

0
$
  

  
  

  
  

4
4
,8

0
0
.0

0
$
  

  
  

  
6
,0

7
7
.0

0
$
  

  
  

  
  

4
8
,6

1
6
.0

0
$
  

  
  

  
5
,4

6
0
.0

0
$
  

  
  

  
  

4
3
,6

8
0
.0

0
$
  

  
  

  
5
,5

1
6
.3

0
$
  

  
  

  
  

4
4
,1

3
0
.4

0
$
  

  
  

  

6
3
8
.0

 -
 W

A
T

E
R

L
IN

E
 C

O
N

N
E

C
T

IO
N

S
 -

 E
A

2
  

  
  

  
  

 
3
,2

0
0
.0

0
$
  

  
  

  
  

6
,4

0
0
.0

0
$
  

  
  

  
  

3
,4

8
5
.0

0
$
  

  
  

  
  

6
,9

7
0
.0

0
$
  

  
  

  
  

1
,8

0
0
.0

0
$
  

  
  

  
  

3
,6

0
0
.0

0
$
  

  
  

  
  

9
2
1
.5

5
$
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

1
,8

4
3
.1

0
$
  

  
  

  
  

S
P

L
 -

 D
E

W
A

T
E

R
IN

G
 C

O
N

T
IN

G
E

N
C

Y
 -

 L
S

1
  

  
  

  
  

 
1
0
,0

0
0
.0

0
$
  

  
  

  
1
0
,0

0
0
.0

0
$
  

  
  

  
1
0
,0

0
0
.0

0
$
  

  
  

  
1
0
,0

0
0
.0

0
$
  

  
  

  
1
0
,0

0
0
.0

0
$
  

  
  

  
1
0
,0

0
0
.0

0
$
  

  
  

  
1
0
,0

0
0
.0

0
$
  

  
  

  
1
0
,0

0
0
.0

0
$
  

  
  

  

8
3
2
.0

 -
 S

T
O

R
M

 W
A

T
E

R
 P

O
L
L
U

T
IO

N
 P

R
E

V
E

N
T

IO
N

 P
L
A

N
 -

 L
S

1
  

  
  

  
  

 
3
0
0
.0

0
$
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

3
0
0
.0

0
$
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

3
,4

1
6
.0

0
$
  

  
  

  
  

3
,4

1
6
.0

0
$
  

  
  

  
  

1
,0

0
0
.0

0
$
  

  
  

  
  

1
,0

0
0
.0

0
$
  

  
  

  
  

1
,1

9
4
.1

5
$
  

  
  

  
  

1
,1

9
4
.1

5
$
  

  
  

  
  

T
o

ta
l 

B
id

s
3
2
5
,9

2
0
.0

0
$
  

  
  

3
8
5
,8

7
8
.0

0
$
  

  
  

3
9
9
,9

7
5
.0

0
$
  

  
  

4
1
9
,8

0
8
.0

0
$
  

  
  

U
n

d
e

rg
ro

u
n

d
 U

ti
li

ti
e
s
, 

In
c

.
D

o
u

b
le

 J
a
y
 C

o
n

s
tr

u
c
ti

o
n

, 
In

c
T

.C
. 

H
o

lz
e
n

 I
n

c
.

B
ra

c
k
n

e
y
, 

In
c

.

It
e
m

 L
is

t 
A

 -
 B

a
s
e
 B

id

C
IT

Y
 O

F
 P

IQ
U

A
 -

 1
5
-0

5
 G

A
R

B
R

Y
 R

O
A

D
 W

A
T

E
R

 M
A

IN
 E

X
T

E
N

S
IO

N

B
ID

 T
A

B

E
X

H
IB

IT
 A



RESOLUTION NO.  R-105-15 
 

A RESOLUTION AWARDING A CONTRACT 
TO GRISSOM CONSTRUCTION, LLC FOR 
THE GARNSEY STREET SIDEWALK 
REPLACEMENT PROJECT 

 
 

 WHEREAS, on January 6, 2015, this Commission passed Resolution No. 
R-6-15 authorizing the City Purchasing Analyst to advertise for bids, according to 
law, for the Garnsey Street Sidewalk Replacement Project; and 

 
WHEREAS, after proper advertisement, bids were opened resulting in the bid 

tabulation as listed in Exhibit A attached hereto;   
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Commission of the City of 
Piqua, Miami County, Ohio, the majority of all members elected thereto concurring, 
that: 

 
SEC. 1: A contract is hereby approved with Grissom Construction, LLC 

as the lowest, responsible bidder for the Garnsey Street Sidewalk Replacement 
Project and the City Manager is hereby authorized to execute a contract with said 
bidder pursuant to contract specifications.  

 
SEC. 2: The Finance Director certifies that funds are available and is 

hereby authorized to draw her warrant from time to time on the appropriate account 
of the city treasury in payment according to contract terms, not exceeding a total of 
$60,000. 

 
SEC. 3: This Resolution shall take effect and be in force from and after 

the earliest period allowed by law. 
 
 
      ____________________________ 
      LUCINDA L. FESS, MAYOR 
 
 
 
PASSED:   _______________________ 
 
 
ATTEST:    _______________________ 
        REBECCA J. COOL 
                   CLERK OF COMMISSION 



 

Item # 6
 

Commission Agenda             
Staff Report 
 
 
 

 
MEETING DATE 

 
July 7, 2015 

 
REPORT TITLE 

(Should match resolution/ordinance 
title) 

 

A Resolution awarding a contract to Grissom Construction, LLC for the 
Garnsey Street Sidewalk Replacement Project. 

 
SUBMITTED BY 

Name & Title: Amy L. Havenar, P.E., City Engineer 

Department:  Engineering 
 

AGENDA CLASSIFICATION 
 

 
Consent 

 
Ordinance 

 
Resolution 

 
Regular 

 
APPROVALS/REVIEWS 

City Manager Asst. City Manager/Finance 
Asst. City Manager/Development Law Director 
Department Director Other:  

 
BACKGROUND 

(Includes description, background, 
and justification) 

 

On June 16, 2015, one bid was received for the Garnsey Street Sidewalk 
Replacement Project (see attached Exhibit A).  In general, the work will consist 
of the replacement of portions of sidewalk and drive approaches throughout the 
300 and 400 blocks of Garnsey Street.  

This project is being funded by the FY 2014 Community Development Block 
Grant (CDBG) Community Development Allocation Program.  An alternate bid 
was taken for additional sidewalk replacement within the project limits.  Since 
the bid we received was favorable, we are recommending that we award the 
alternate bid in addition to the replacement of additional sidewalk not in the 
original bid, but within the Garnsey Street area, so we can utilize 100% of the 
grant funding.     

 
BUDGETING AND 

FINANCIAL IMPACT 
(Includes project costs and funding 

sources) 

Budgeted $:  $60,000   
Expenditure $:  $60,000  
Source of Funds: 2014 CDBG Allocation Funds 
Narrative:  Funding for this project is from the FY 2014 CDBG 

Community Development Allocation Program.     

 
OPTIONS 

(Include Deny /Approval Option) 
 
 

1. Approve the resolution and complete the Garnsey Street Sidewalk 
Replacement Project 

2. Do not approve the resolution and do not complete the Garnsey Street 
Sidewalk Replacement Project and return the funding. 

 
PROJECT TIMELINE 

 

The work will begin as soon as possible and has a completion date of August 
20, 2015. 

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 

 

Approve the resolution to allow for the completion of the Garnsey Street 
Sidewalk Replacement Project  

ATTACHMENTS  Bid Tabulation (Exhibit A) 

 



Item Quantity Price Extension

202 - WALK / DRIVEWAY REMOVED - SF 4,138.20         2.00$               8,276.40$        

202 - CURB REMOVED - LF 123.00            5.00$               615.00$           

608 - CONCRETE WALK, 4", AS PER PLAN - SF 3,380.20         5.50$               18,591.10$      

608 - CONCRETE DRIVEWAY, 6" AS PER PLAN - SF 439.80            6.50$               2,858.70$        

608 - CONCRETE DRIVEWAY, 8" AS PER PLAN - SF 318.30            7.50$               2,387.25$        

609 - CURB, CITY OF PIQUA TYPE 6 - LF 123.00            22.50$             2,767.50$        

614 - TRAFFIC CONTROL - LUMP 1.00                3,000.00$        3,000.00$        

Base Bid Total 38,495.95$      

202 - WALK / DRIVEWAY REMOVED - SF 195.00            2.00$               390.00$           

202 - CURB REMOVED - LF -             -$                 -$                 

608 - CONCRETE WALK, 4", AS PER PLAN - SF 195.00            5.50$               1,072.50$        

608 - CONCRETE DRIVEWAY, 6" AS PER PLAN - SF -             -$                 -$                 

608 - CONCRETE DRIVEWAY, 8" AS PER PLAN - SF -             -$                 -$                 

609 - CURB, CITY OF PIQUA TYPE 6 - LF -             -$                 -$                 

614 - TRAFFIC CONTROL - LUMP -             -$                 -$                 

Alternate Bid Total 1,462.50$        

Total Base and Alternate Bids 39,958.45$      

Grissom Construction, LLC

Item List #1 - Base Bid - Quantity Sheet

Item List #2 - Alternate Bid - Quantity Sheet

15-03 GARNSEY STREET SIDEWALK REPLACEMENT

BID TAB

EXHIBIT A



RESOLUTION NO.  R-106-15 

A RESOLUTION TO AUTHORIZE A CONTRACT FOR THE 
DEMOLITION OF 102 S. MAIN STREET 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Piqua desires to raze the structure located at 102 S. Main 

Street in support of the Downtown Riverfront Redevelopment Strategy; and 
 
WHEREAS, an Invitation for Bids was advertised to solicit bids for the demolition 

of the structure located at 102 S. Main Street; and 
 
 WHEREAS, after receiving and reviewing the bids submitted, it is recommended 
that the City of Piqua enter into a contract with Roe Transportation Enterprises to 
complete the subject demolition project. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Commission of the City of Piqua, 
Miami County, Ohio, the majority of all members elected thereto concurring, that 

 SEC. 1:  The City Manager is hereby authorized to enter into a contract with Roe 
Transportation Enterprises in the amount of $38,500 for the demolition of the structure 
located at 102 S. Main Street. 

 SEC. 2:  The Finance Director certifies that funds are available and is hereby 
authorized to draw her warrant from time to time on the appropriate account of the city 
treasury in payment according to contract terms. 

 SEC. 3:  This Resolution shall take effect and be in force from and after the 
earliest period allowed by law.  
 
 
       _________________________ 
       LUCINDA L. FESS, MAYOR 
 
 
PASSED:   _______________________ 

ATTEST:   _______________________ 
 REBECCA J. COOL   
 CLERK OF COMMISSION 

 



 

Item #7 
 

Commission Agenda 
       Staff Report 
 
 
 
 

MEETING DATE June 29, 2015 

REPORT TITLE 
(Match resolution/ordinance title) 

ARESOLUTION TO AUTHORIZE A CONTRACT FOR THE DEMOLITION 
OF 102 S. MAIN STREET 

SUBMITTED BY Chris Schmiesing, City Planner 

Development Department 

AGENDA CLASSIFICATION Consent Ordinance Resolution Regular 

APPROVALS/REVIEWS City Manager Asst. City Manager/Finance 

Asst. City Manager/Development Law Director 

 City Planner  

BACKGROUND 
(Description, background, justification) 

This item supports the plans presented in the Downtown Riverfront 
Redevelopment Strategy and is responsive to the recommended action items 
included therein.  Demolition of this structure will eliminate an unsafe building 
condition and ready the site for future improvements that advance the riverfront 
redevelopment and revitalization efforts.  

BUDGET/FINANCIAL IMPACT 
(Project costs and funding sources) 

Budgeted $:  38,500 

Expenditure $:  38,500 

Source of Funds: 104-109-875-7553 

Narrative:  This project was included in the 2015 budget allocations. 

OPTIONS 
(Include deny /approval option) 

 

1. Adopt the resolution and authorize funding for the completion of the 
demolition project. 

2. Defeat the resolution and deny funding for the completion of the 
demolition project. 

PROJECT TIMELINE July 7, 2015 – City Commission  

July 8, 2015 – Issue Notice to Proceed 

September 2015 – Project Complete  

STAFF RECOMMENDATION Approve the resolution to authorize the funding for this project. 

 

















 

 

CITY – CONTRACTOR AGREEMENT  
 

This Agreement is hereby entered into this _____ day of July 2015 between the 
City of Piqua, a municipal corporation in the State of Ohio (“City”) and Roe 
Transportation Enterprises (“Contractor”) for the services as agreed to herein. 
 

WHEREAS, the City of Piqua desires to raze the structure(s) located at 102 S. 
Main Street, and has advertised for bids and enters into this agreement in accordance 
with the laws of the City of Piqua; and 
 

WHEREAS, Roe Transportation Enterprises (“Contractor”) was the successful 
bidder as a result of the open bid process, which included the submittal of the 
documents attached hereto as Exhibit ‘A’; and 
 

WHEREAS, this Agreement confirms the terms between the parties as 
substantially set out in the bid specifications;  

 
NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the promises, mutual covenants and 

agreements set forth, the City of Piqua and the Contractor, each binding itself, its 
successors and assigns, do mutually agree as follows:  
 

I. PARTIES 
1. City of Piqua:  The City of Piqua is a municipal corporation in Miami 

County, State of Ohio.  The City of Piqua shall be referred throughout the 
Agreement as “City.” 

 
2. Contractor:  Contractor is Roe Transportation Enterprises, which is the 

provider of the services contracted for by way of this Agreement. 
  

II. SCOPE OF SERVICES 
All environmental remediation work required prior to demolition of the 
structure has been completed.  The CONTRACTOR shall be responsible for 
the demolition of the subject structure. 
 
CONTRACTOR shall provide/complete the following: 
 
1) Secure a City of Piqua Demolition Permit, including the submittal of a 

performance bond for the work to be completed. 
2) Provide notification to RAPCA and satisfy the applicable monitoring 

requirements.   
3) Barricade the worksite as necessary to maintain a secure work zone and 

insure public safety. 
4) Raze the primary and accessory structures, including all foundations, 

surface pavements, fencing and landscape vegetation unless otherwise 
noted, and disconnect and remove/abandon utility services as required. 



 

 2

5) Dispose of all demolition debris off site at proper receiving facility (Owner 
may request contractor to salvage and provide to owner certain 
architectural features deemed to be of historical significance – TBD prior 
to commencing demolition).  

6) Water the demolition site as needed to prevent accumulations of dust and 
air borne debris. 

7) Backfill excavations with suitable materials and grade site to drain and 
complete site restoration with placement of aggregate surface. 

8) Install and maintain appropriate erosion control throughout the 
construction period. 

9) Repair/replace adjacent improvements damaged during demolition. 
 
  
CITY shall provide/complete the following: 

1) Remove light pole adjacent to the project site. 
2) Provide permission for CONTRACTOR to remove the chain link fence 

from the adjacent property and permission to use the property while 
completing the Project. 

3) Monitor the Project to ensure conformance with the applicable 
standards. 

 
III. COMPENSATION 

The City agrees to compensate CONTRACTOR for the performance of the 
work specified in this Agreement for a lump sum fee not to exceed Thirty-
Eight Thousand Five-Hundred Dollars ($38,500).  
 

IV. LAW AND TERMS OF AGREEMENT 
1.  Subcontracting: 
None of the work or services covered by this Agreement shall be 
subcontracted, except as set forth herein, without the prior written approval of 
the Piqua assigned project manager.  Any work or services subcontracted 
hereunder shall be specified by written contract or agreement and shall be 
subject to each provision of this Agreement. 

 
 

2.  Compliance With Laws and Policies: 
This Agreement is subject to and Contractor shall comply with all statutes, 
ordinances, regulations, and rules of the Federal Government, the State of 
Ohio, the County of Miami and the City of Piqua. 

 
3. Law to Govern and Forum: 
This Agreement is entered into and is to be performed in the State of Ohio.  
City of Piqua and Contractor agree that the law of the State of Ohio shall 
govern the rights, obligations, duties and liabilities of the parties to this 
Agreement and shall govern the interpretation of this Agreement.  The forum 
for any litigation shall be Miami County, Ohio. 



 

 3

 
4. Amendment: 
This Agreement may be modified or amended only by a written agreement 
duly executed by the parties hereto or their representatives. 

 
5. Entirety: 
This Agreement and the Exhibits attached hereto contain the entire 
Agreement between the parties as to the matters contained herein.  Any oral 
representations of modifications concerning this Agreement shall be of no 
force and effect. 
 
6. Waiver: 
A waiver of any breach of any provision of this Agreement shall not constitute 
or operate as a waiver of any other breach of such provision or any other 
provisions, nor shall any failure to enforce any provision hereof operate as a 
waiver of such provision or of any other provision. 

 
7. Hold Harmless and Indemnification: 
The Contractor shall protect, defend, indemnify and hold harmless the City of 
Piqua, its officers, agents, elected officials, employees, elected officials and 
volunteers, from any and all loss, claims, expenses, actions, causes of action, 
damages and obligations, financial or otherwise, including attorney fees and 
legal expenses, arising from any and all acts of the Contractor, its agents, 
employees, licensees, or invitees, that result in injury to persons or damage to 
property.   

 
8. Insurance: 
The Contractor, at its sole cost and expense, shall procure and maintain at all 
times during the term of this Agreement general liability or other insurance in 
an amount not less than One Million Dollars ($1,000,000) for liability for acts 
of the Contractor or its agents and/or employees.  The City of Piqua shall be 
an additional named insured with the following language required:  
 
“City of Piqua, its employees, agents, volunteers, all boards, 
commissions, and/or authorities and board members, including 
employees, agents and volunteers thereof are an additional insured 
and this insurance coverage shall serve as Primary to the Additional 
Insureds and not contributing with any other insurance or self-
insurance available to the Additional Insureds.” 
 
Each entity must provide a certificate of insurance that has at least $1 
million commercial general liability coverage per occurrence or $2 
million aggregate on ISO Form CG 00 01 12 07.  Cincinnati Insurance 
endorsement form GA 411311 99 will not be accepted. 
 
9. Notice: 



 

 4

This Agreement provides that all notices be personally served or sent by 
certified mail, postage prepaid and return receipt requested, addressed to the 
following parties: 
 
To the City: 
City of Piqua 
Development Department 
Chris Schmiesing 
201 W. Water Street 
Piqua, Ohio 45356 
 

To the Contractor: 
Roe Transportation 
Enterprises 
Shane Roe 
3680 West Michigan Street 
Sidney, Ohio 45365 

 
10. Independent Contractor: 
The Contractor, his assigns, heirs, successors, employees and any and all 
subcontractors are independent contractors and are not agents and/or 
employees of the City of Piqua. 
 
11. Audit: 
At any time the City shall have the right to request an audit of the Contractor’s 
records to determine compliance with the terms of this Agreement.  Upon 
such request by the City, the Contractor shall permit inspection of its records 
within two (2) days.  Failure to comply with the City’s request for an audit shall 
be cause for the City to withhold payment for services until the audit takes 
place and the City is able to obtain the information to satisfy compliance with 
the terms of this Agreement. 
 
12. Assignment: 
This Agreement shall not be assigned without the express written approval of 
the City of Piqua.  Failure to secure the City’s approval prior to assignment of 
this Agreement shall be cause for termination of this Agreement with any and 
all costs and damages being assessed to the Contractor. 
 
13. Default: 
Should the Contractor default on any provision of this Agreement, the City 
shall provide written notice of the default and Contractor shall have a period 
of thirty (30) days to cure the default.  If the Contractor does not cure the 
default within the allotted period, the City may cure the default and assess the 
costs to the Contractor or may terminate the Agreement for reason that said 
Contractor has breached this Agreement and was considered in default. 
 
14. Termination: 
This Agreement may only be terminated if either party should fail materially to 
fulfill its obligations under this Agreement, the other party may notify the 
breaching party of the intent to terminate the Agreement.  If a party should 
seek termination, said party shall provide thirty (30) days written notice, 
specifying the reason(s) which constitute a failure to perform.  The breaching 



 

 5

party shall have thirty (30) days to cure the default from the notice of intent to 
terminate.  Failure to cure the default terminates the Agreement at the 
expiration of the thirty (30) days. 
 
15. Term: 
The term of this Agreement shall be for the period beginning from the date of 
execution of this Agreement through the date of completion of the scope of 
work described here in, not to exceed 4 months.  Said term is non-renewing. 
 
16. Conflict of Interest: 
No officer, employee, or agent of the City of Piqua who exercises any 
functions or responsibilities in connection with the planning and carrying out 
of the program, nor any immediate family member, close business associate, 
or organization which is about to employ any such person, shall have any 
personal financial interest, direct or indirect, in the Contractor or in this 
Agreement and the Contractor shall take appropriate steps to assure 
compliance. 
 
The Contractor agrees that it will not contract with any subcontractor in which 
it has any personal interest, direct or indirect.  The Contractor further 
covenants that in the performance of this Agreement, no person having any 
conflict shall be employed. 
 
17.  Waiver: 
A waiver of any breach of any provision of this Agreement shall not constitute 
or operate as a waiver of any other breach of such provision or of any other 
provisions, nor shall any failure to enforce any provision hereof operate as a 
waiver of such provision or of any other provision. 
 
18.   Proprietary Materials: 
The City of Piqua acknowledges that in the course of performing services, the 
Contractor may use products, materials or proprietary information.  The City 
of Piqua agrees that it shall have or obtained no rights in the proprietary 
material, except pursuant to a separate written agreement that may be 
executed by the parties. 
 
The Contractor acknowledges that in the course of performing services for the 
City of Piqua, the materials and information obtained, used, and/or produced 
for the City of Piqua are the exclusive properties of the City and may not be 
disseminated in any manner without the prior written approval of the City of 
Piqua. 
 
19. Ownership of Property: 
The Contractor agrees that at the expiration or in the event of termination of 
this Agreement, any memoranda, maps, drawings, working papers, reports 



 

 6

and other similar documents produced in connection with the Agreement shall 
become the property of the City of Piqua. 
 
The Contractor acknowledges that the City of Piqua is obligated to comply 
with the Public Records law of the State of Ohio and must disclose upon 
request any document that is considered a public record pursuant to the law. 
 
20. Warranty: 
The Contractor warrants that the service to be provided by it hereunder will be 
performed in good, timely, and professional manner by qualified staff and in 
accordance with generally accepted industry standards.   
  

V. SIGNATURE 
 

The parties enter into this Agreement on the date referenced above, as 
executed and witnessed in accordance with the below signatures. 
 
CITY OF PIQUA     CONTRACTOR 
By:       By: 
 
 
____________________________  __________________________ 
Gary A. Huff, City Manager       

Title: 
 
       __________________________ 
 
Witness:      Witness: 
 
____________________________  __________________________ 
 
 
Approved as to form:    Approved as to funding:  
 
____________________________  __________________________ 
Stacy M. Wall, Law Director   Cynthia A. Holtzapple, Finance Director 
 


	agenda
	2015 - 061615 City Commission Meeting Minutes
	ord07_15_2
	res102_15
	res102_15
	res102_15b
	res102_15c
	res102_15d
	res102_15e

	res103_15
	res103_15
	res103_15b
	res103_15c

	res104_15
	res104_15
	res104_15b
	res104_15c

	res105_15
	res105_15
	res105_15b
	res105_15c

	res106_15
	res106_15
	res106_15b
	res106_15c
	res106_15d


